#### OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT OFFICIAL BID FORM

# \$54,775,000 BRYANT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 25 OF SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS REFUNDING AND CONSTRUCTION BONDS, SERIES B

**Dated May 1, 2018** 

[BOOK-ENTRY ONLY]

Being sold on sealed bids which will be received until 9:45 o'clock a.m., local time, on April 10, 2018, as follows: in the case of written bids, at the offices of First Security Beardsley, First Security Center, 521 President Clinton Avenue, Suite 800, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201-1729, and in the case of electronic bids, via PARITY, as described herein.

#### **OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE**

Bryant School District No. 25 of Saline County, Arkansas (the "District"), offers the above described bonds (the "Bonds") for sale on written or electronic bids, which will be received at the place and until the time specified on the cover sheet.

Reference is made to the Preliminary Official Statement, attached hereto and incorporated herein, for details concerning the Bonds.

The District will, within seven (7) business days after the sale date, furnish to the successful bidder one signed copy of the final Official Statement. It will be the responsibility of the successful bidder to make sufficient copies to satisfy its disclosure obligations and its insurance obligations. The trustee shall be Bank of the Ozarks, Little Rock, Arkansas (see **TRUSTEE**).

#### **BOND DETAILS**

The Bonds will be dated as of May 1, 2018. Interest will be payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1 in each year, beginning August 1, 2018. The Bonds are being issued to refund certain outstanding debt and finance certain capital improvements.

The Bonds shall mature or become due through mandatory sinking fund redemptions as set forth below (subject to adjustment as hereinafter provided):

Year	
(February 1)	<u>Amount</u>
2019	\$1,680,000
2020	1,245,000
2021	1,265,000
2022	1,290,000
2023	1,315,000
2024	1,345,000
2025	1,380,000
2026	1,415,000
2027	1,450,000
2028	1,490,000
2029	1,535,000
2030	1,585,000
2031	1,640,000
2032	1,695,000
2033	1,750,000
2034	1,815,000
2035	1,880,000
2036	1,950,000
2037	2,020,000
2038	2,100,000
2039	2,175,000
2040	2,260,000
2041	2,350,000
2042	2,440,000
2043	2,535,000
2044	2,635,000
2045	2,735,000
2046	2,845,000
2047	2,955,000

Reference is made to the Preliminary Official Statement, attached hereto and incorporated herein, for further details concerning the Bonds.

#### REDEMPTION

Extraordinary Redemption. The Bonds must be redeemed from proceeds of the Bonds not needed for the purposes intended, on any interest payment date, in whole or in part, at a price equal to the principal amount being redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date, in inverse order of maturity (and by lot within a maturity in such manner as the Trustee may determine).

Optional Redemption. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the District, in whole, or in part, at any time on or after August 1, 2023, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date. If fewer than all of the Bonds are called for redemption, the particular maturities to be redeemed shall be selected by the District in its discretion. If fewer than all of the Bonds of any maturity shall be called for redemption, the particular Bonds or portion thereof to be redeemed from such maturity shall be selected by lot by the Trustee.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. Term Bonds (defined below), if any, will be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemptions on February 1 in the year or years immediately prior to the stated maturity of such Term Bonds, as specified by the successful bidder on the Official Bid Form. The particular Bonds of each maturity are to be redeemed at the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption and payment.

On the specified redemption date, all Bonds called for redemption shall cease to bear interest, provided that the amounts necessary to pay the redemption price thereof are on deposit with the Trustee. If fewer than all of the Bonds of like maturity, interest rate and otherwise identical payment terms shall be called for redemption, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot by the Trustee in such manner as the Trustee in its discretion may deem fair and appropriate. For purposes of selection by lot within a maturity, each \$5,000 of principal amount of a Bond will be considered a separate Bond without regard to the actual denomination of such Bond.

Notice of redemption will be sent to the Registered Owners of the Bonds by the Trustee as described in the Preliminary Official Statement.

The District shall be entitled to reduce its mandatory sinking fund redemption obligation in any year with respect to Term Bonds of any maturity by the principal amount of any such Term Bonds previously redeemed or acquired by the District and surrendered to the Trustee.

#### **CONTINUING DISCLOSURE**

In order to assist the bidders in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) (the "Rule"), the District will undertake pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to provide annual reports and notices of certain events. A description of this agreement is set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement and will be set forth in the final Official Statement.

#### FORM OF BONDS

The Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds without coupons in denominations of \$5,000 or an integral multiple thereof.

#### **BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM**

The Bonds will be initially issued in book-entry form and purchasers of Bonds will not receive certificates representing their interests in the Bonds purchased. See **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, Book-Entry Only System. The Bonds will contain such other terms and provisions as described herein. See **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, Generally.

#### **BIDDING CONDITIONS**

Bids will be received on the Bonds bearing such rate or rates of interest as may be specified by the bidders, subject to the following conditions. The same rate of interest shall apply to all Bonds

of the same maturity. Each interest rate specified shall be a multiple of 1/8 or 1/20 of 1%. The interest rate specified for the Bonds of any maturity shall not be less than the interest rate specified for the Bonds of any earlier maturity. No bid of less than \$53,734,275 plus accrued interest will be considered (the "Purchase Price"). No supplemental interest payments will be authorized.

The Bonds shall mature serially or come due through mandatory sinking fund redemptions on February 1 in each of the years the Bonds are outstanding. Bidders may specify on the Official Bid Form that all of the principal amount of Bonds in any two or more consecutive years of the issue may, in lieu of maturing in each such year, be combined to comprise one or more maturities of Bonds ("Term Bonds") scheduled to mature in the latest of such years and be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemptions at par on February 1 in each of the years and in the principal amounts specified on the Official Bid Form. Each mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be allocated to the payment of the Term Bonds maturing in the nearest subsequent year. Bidders may specify one or more Term Bonds.

All bids shall either be submitted on the Official Bid Form, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A hereto, or electronically via PARITY.

The District reserves the right to waive any informalities or irregularities and to reject any and all bids.

#### **SUBMISSION OF BIDS**

Bids must be submitted by 9:45 a.m., Central Time on April 10, 2018 (the "Sale Date"), either: (a) in a sealed envelope addressed to Bryant School District No. 25 of Saline County, Arkansas, c/o Scott Beardsley, First Security Beardsley, First Security Center, 521 President Clinton Avenue, Suite 800, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201-1729, marked "Bid for the Purchase of \$54,775,000 Bryant School District No. 25 of Saline County, Arkansas Refunding and Construction Bonds, Series B, dated May 1, 2018," or (b) electronically via PARITY in accordance with this Official Notice of Sale, but no bid will be received after the time for receiving bids specified above. To the extent any instructions or directions set forth in PARITY conflict with this Official Notice of Sale, the terms of this Official Notice of Sale shall control. For further information about PARITY, potential bidders may contact the Fiscal Agent or Dalcomp at 1359 Broadway, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor, New York, NY 10018, telephone (212) 849-5021.

#### **AWARD OF THE BONDS**

The Bonds will be dated May 1, 2018, and the first interest payment date will be August 1, 2018. All of the Bonds will be awarded to the bidder offering to purchase all of the Bonds at the lowest true interest cost ("TIC") to the District (the "Successful Bidder"). The TIC shall mean the rate which, as of May 1, 2018, discounts semi-annually, all future payments on account of principal, mandatory sinking fund redemption and interest to the net purchase price bid, not including interest accrued to the date of delivery, which accrued interest shall be paid by the Successful Bidder. The Bonds will be awarded immediately after opening. The Successful Bidder must furnish to the District a Good Faith Deposit (the "Deposit") in the form of a wire transfer in the amount of \$1,095,500 payable to the order of the District. A wire fed reference number (the "Fed Reference Number") for the Deposit must be received by the Fiscal Agent by 2:00 p.m., Central Time, on the Sale Date (the "Deposit Deadline"). If the Deposit or the Fed Reference Number is not received by the Deposit Deadline, the District may rescind its award to the Successful Bidder and, for the following twelve (12) months, the Successful Bidder will be required to furnish a Deposit prior to submitting its bid on any Arkansas school bonds. Wiring instructions are as follows: First Security Bank, Searcy, Arkansas, ABA #0829-0153-8. Credit: Good Faith Account #662119. Further Credit: Bryant School District No. 25 of Saline County, Arkansas. No interest on the Deposit will accrue to the Successful Bidder. The wire transfer Deposit of the winning Bidder will be applied to the purchase price of the Bonds.

If two or more proper bids providing for identical amounts for the lowest TIC are received, the District shall determine by lot which, if any, bid shall be accepted and its determination shall be final.

The Successful Bidder must pay accrued interest, computed on a 30-day month, 360-day year basis, from the date of the Bonds to the date of delivery.

#### ESTABLISHMENT OF ISSUE PRICE

The Successful Bidder shall assist the District in establishing the issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the District at closing an "issue price" or similar certificate setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public or the sales price or prices of the Bonds, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the Successful Bidder, the District and Bond Counsel. All actions to be taken by the District under this Official Notice of Sale to establish the issue price of the Bonds may be taken on behalf of the District by the District's Fiscal Agent identified herein and any notice or report to be provided to the District may be provided to the District's Fiscal Agent.

The District intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) (defining "competitive sale" for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) will apply to the initial sale of the Bonds (the "competitive sale requirements") because:

- (1) the District shall disseminate this Official Notice of Sale to potential underwriters in a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential underwriters;
  - (2) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;
- (3) the District may receive bids from at least three underwriters of municipal bonds who have established industry reputations for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds; and
- (4) the District anticipates awarding the sale of the Bonds to the bidder who submits a firm offer to purchase the Bonds at the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set forth in this Official Notice of Sale.

Any bid submitted pursuant to this Official Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the Bonds, as specified in the bid.

In the event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, the District shall so advise the Successful Bidder. The District shall treat the first price at which 10% of a maturity of the Bonds (the "10% test") is sold to the public as the issue price of that maturity, applied on a maturity-by-maturity basis. The Successful Bidder shall advise the District if any maturity of the Bonds satisfies the 10% test as of the date and time of the award of the Bonds. The District will not require bidders to comply with the "hold-the-offering-price rule" and therefore does not intend to use the initial offering price to the public as of the sale date of any maturity of the Bonds as the issue price of that maturity. Bids will not be subject to cancellation in the event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied. Bidders should prepare their bids on the assumption that all of the maturities of the Bonds will be subject to the 10% test in order to establish the issue price of the Bonds.

If the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, then until the 10% test has been satisfied as to each maturity of the Bonds, the Successful Bidder agrees to promptly report to the District the prices at which the unsold Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public. That reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the closing date has occurred, until the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or until all Bonds of that maturity have been sold.

By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that: (i) any agreement among underwriters, any selling group agreement and each retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified

by the Successful Bidder that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public, if and for so long as directed by the Successful Bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and (ii) any agreement among underwriters relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement to report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the Successful Bidder or such underwriter that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public, if and for so long as directed by the Successful Bidder or such underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires.

Sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party to an underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this Official Notice of Sale. Further, for purposes of this Official Notice of Sale:

- (i) "public" means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,
- (ii) "underwriter" means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the District (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public), and
- (iii) a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a "related party" to an underwriter if the underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other).

#### TRUSTEE

The Trustee will be responsible for maintaining the Bond Registration Book, paying interest to the registered owners, transferring registration of ownership, authenticating and delivering new Bonds and paying the Bonds at maturity, as well as performing the normal functions of a Trustee.

#### **EXPENSES**

The District or its Fiscal Agent will pay all expenses of the issue, including the fee of Bond Counsel.

#### **LEGAL OPINION**

The Successful Bidder will be furnished the opinion of Friday, Eldredge & Clark, LLP, Bond Counsel, dated the date of the issuance and delivery of the Bonds, to the effect that the Bonds have been lawfully issued under the Constitution and laws of the State of Arkansas and constitute valid, binding and enforceable obligations of the District, that interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of Arkansas income taxes, and that the Bonds are exempt from property taxes in the State of Arkansas. See the attached Preliminary Official Statement for a description of that portion of the opinion relating to federal income taxes.

#### REGISTRATION AND DELIVERY

The Bonds will be delivered to the Successful Bidder upon payment of the Purchase Price. Delivery will be made within 60 days after the Sale Date, the exact date of delivery to be specified by the District by seven days' notice to the Successful Bidder.

It shall be the responsibility of the Successful Bidder to notify the Trustee, at least six (6) days prior to delivery, of the names and tax identification numbers of registered owners to be shown at the initial delivery of the Bonds, and such notice shall specify the principal amounts in which the Bonds are to be issued.

#### **CUSIP NUMBERS**

It is anticipated that CUSIP numbers will be printed on the Bonds. It will be the responsibility of the Success Bidder to obtain the CUSIP numbers and to pay the fee therefor. In no event will the District be responsible for or Bond Counsel review or express any opinion of the correctness of such numbers, and incorrect numbers on the Bonds shall not be cause for the purchaser to refuse to accept delivery.

## **ADDITIONAL INFORMATION**

Additional information may be obtained from the undersigned.

BRYANT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 25 OF SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS

By \_\_\_\_

Scott Beardsley FIRST SECURITY BEARDSLEY FISCAL AGENT

#### PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED APRIL 3, 2018

This Preliminary Official Statement has been prepared for use in connection with the District's offering of these Bonds for public sale on sealed bids. Bidding requirements and procedures are set out in the Official Notice of Sale. The District will furnish to the successful bidder a final Official Statement.

NEW ISSUE	RATING: Moody's (Underly	ying)
BOOK-ENTRY ONLY	Moody's (Enhance	ed)

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, assuming compliance with certain covenants described herein, (i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, (ii) interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of Arkansas income tax and (iii) the Bonds are exempt from property taxes in the State of Arkansas.

#### OFFICIAL STATEMENT

## \$54,775,000\* Bryant School District No. 25 of Saline County, Arkansas Refunding and Construction Bonds, Series B

Dated: May 1, 2018 Due: February 1

The Bonds are limited, general obligations of Bryant School District No. 25 of Saline County, Arkansas. Interest on the Bonds is payable on February 1 and August 1, commencing August 1, 2018, and the Bonds mature (on February 1 of each year), bear interest and are priced as follows:

		Rate	Price or			Rate	Price or
<b>Maturity</b>	<u>Amount</u>	<u>(%)</u>	Yield (%)	<b>Maturity</b>	<u>Amount</u>	<u>(%)</u>	Yield (%)
2019	\$1,680,000			2034	\$1,815,000		
2020	1,245,000			2035	1,880,000		
2021	1,265,000			2036	1,950,000		
2022	1,290,000			2037	2,020,000		
2023	1,315,000			2038	2,100,000		
2024	1,345,000			2039	2,175,000		
2025	1,380,000			2040	2,260,000		
2026	1,415,000			2041	2,350,000		
2027	1,450,000			2042	2,440,000		
2028	1,490,000			2043	2,535,000		
2029	1,535,000			2044	2,635,000		
2030	1,585,000			2045	2,735,000		
2031	1,640,000			2046	2,845,000		
2032	1,695,000			2047	2,955,000		
2033	1,750,000						

(Accrued interest from May 1, 2018)

The Bonds of each maturity will be initially issued as a single registered Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York. The Bonds will be available for purchase in book-entry form only, in denominations of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Except in limited circumstances described herein, purchasers of the Bonds will not receive physical delivery of Bonds. Payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds will be made by Bank of the Ozarks, Little Rock, Arkansas, as the Trustee, directly to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, as registered owner of the Bonds, to be subsequently disbursed to DTC Participants and thereafter to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, all as further described herein. The Bonds are subject to optional redemption on and after August 1, 2023.

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of this issue. Investors must read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed decision.

The Bonds are offered, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued and accepted by the Underwriter named below, subject to the approval of legality by Bond Counsel and certain other conditions.

		Underwriter
Official Statement dated:	, 2018.	
* Preliminary; subject to change.		

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the District or the Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any offer, solicitation or sale of the Bonds by or to any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to make such offer, solicitation or sale. Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor the sale of any of the Bonds implies that there has been no change in the matters described herein since the date hereof or that the information herein is correct as of any time subsequent to its date.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION TO THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT	1
BONDS BEING OFFERED	2
Book-Entry Only System Generally Authority Purpose Sources and Uses of Funds Security and Source of Payment Developments Redemption Redemption Redemption of Prior Tax Bonds Additional Parity Bonds Priority Among Successive Bond Issues	2 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 8
DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT	8
Area Governmental Organization Executive Officials Services Provided School Buildings School Enrollment and Population Accreditation Assessed Valuation Financial Institution Deposits Major Employers Employees	8 8 9 9 10 10 10 11 11
DEBT STRUCTURE	11
Outstanding Indebtedness Parity Debt Debt Ratio Computation of Dollar Amount of Debt	11 12 12
Service Tax Levied Debt Service Schedule and Coverage Pledge of State Aid Uniform Rate of Tax Defaults	12 13 13 14 14

THE RESOLUTION	14
Bond Fund Deposit of Sale Proceeds Investments Trustee Modification of Terms of Bonds Defeasance Defaults and Remedies	14 14 14 15 15 15
FINANCIAL INFORMATION	17
Sources and Uses of Funds Collection of Taxes Overlapping Ad Valorem Taxes Assessment of Property and Collection of	17 18 18
Property Taxes	18
Constitutional Amendment Affecting Personal Property Taxes Constitutional Amendment Nos. 59 and 79 Major Taxpayers	20 20 22
LEGAL MATTERS	22
Litigation Over State Funding for Schools Legal Proceedings Legal Opinion Tax Exemption Non-Litigation Certificate Official Statement Certificate	22 23 23 23 24 24
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE	24
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE PAST COMPLIANCE	27
MISCELLANEOUS	28
Bond Rating Underwriting Interest of Certain Persons	28 28 28

#### INTRODUCTION TO THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT

This introduction to the Official Statement is only a brief description and is subject in all respects to the more complete information contained in the Official Statement. The offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the entire Official Statement, including the cover page.

<u>Purpose of Official Statement</u>. This Official Statement is provided to furnish certain information in connection with the issuance by Bryant School District No. 25 of Saline County, Arkansas (the "District"), of its Refunding and Construction Bonds, Series B, dated May 1, 2018, in the aggregate principal amount of \$54,775,000\* (the "Bonds").

<u>Book-Entry Only System</u>. The Bonds will be initially issued in book-entry form and purchasers of Bonds will not receive certificates representing their interests in the Bonds purchased. See **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, <u>Book-Entry Only System</u>. The Bonds will contain such other terms and provisions as described herein. See **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, <u>Generally</u>.

<u>The District</u>. The District is a school district duly established and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Arkansas for the purpose of providing public school education for persons residing within the geographic boundaries of the District. See **DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT**.

Security and Source of Payment. The Bonds will be limited, general obligations of the District, secured by a pledge of the proceeds of a continuing debt service tax voted at the 2017 school election specifically for the payment of a total proposed issue in the aggregate principal amount of \$96,000,000 (the "2017 Election Bonds"). The District's Refunding and Construction Bonds, Series A, dated July 1, 2017 (the "Series A Bonds"), in the principal amount of \$41,225,000, were the first part of the 2017 Election Bonds. These Bonds are the second and final part of the 2017 Election Bonds. These Bonds will rank on a parity of security. See **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, Security and Source of Payment.

<u>Litigation Over State Funding for Schools.</u> In an Order issued November 9, 1994, the Honorable Annabelle C. Imber held that the existing state funding system for public education violated the equal protection provision of the Arkansas Constitution and violated Article 14, § 1 of the Arkansas Constitution by "failing to provide a general, suitable and efficient system of free public education." <u>Lake View School Dist. No. 25 of Phillips County, Arkansas v. Jim Guy Tucker, Case No. 12-5318</u> (1994). After years of litigation and legislation, the Arkansas Supreme Court concluded (on May 31, 2007) that the system of public school financing was now in constitutional compliance.

At the 1996 general election, a Constitutional Amendment was passed ("Amendment No. 74") which establishes a statewide 25-mill property tax minimum for maintenance and operation of the public schools (the "Uniform Rate of Tax"). The Uniform Rate of Tax replaces that portion of local school district ad valorem taxes available for maintenance and operation. The Uniform Rate of Tax is to be collected in the same manner as other school property taxes, but the revenues generated from the Uniform Rate of Tax are remitted to the State Treasurer for distribution to the school districts.

<u>Purpose</u>. The Bonds are being issued to refund existing debt and to finance capital improvements for the public schools of the District. See **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, <u>Purpose</u>.

\_

<sup>\*</sup> Preliminary; subject to change.

Redemption. The Bonds are subject to optional redemption on and after August 1, 2023. The Bonds are also subject to redemption from proceeds of the Bonds not needed for the purposes intended. Term Bonds, if any, will be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on February 1 in the year or years immediately prior to the stated maturity of such Term Bonds in such years as are specified by the successful bidder. The Trustee shall give at least thirty (30) days' notice of redemption. If fewer than all of the Bonds are called for redemption, the particular maturities to be redeemed shall be selected by the District in its discretion. If fewer than all of the Bonds of any maturity shall be called for redemption, the particular Bonds or portion thereof to be redeemed from such maturity shall be selected by lot by the Trustee. See **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, Redemption.

<u>Denominations and Registration</u>. The Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in the denomination of \$5,000 or an integral multiple thereof. Interest is payable August 1, 2018, and semiannually thereafter on each February 1 and August 1. Unless the Bonds are in bookentry form, payment of principal of the Bonds will be made to the owners of the Bonds at the principal office of Bank of the Ozarks, Little Rock, Arkansas (the "Trustee"). Interest is payable by check mailed by the Trustee to the registered owners as of the Record Date (herein defined) for each interest payment date. A bond may be transferred, in whole or in part (in integral multiples of \$5,000), but only upon delivery of the bond, together with a written instrument of transfer, to the Trustee. See **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, Generally and Book-Entry Only System.

<u>Tax Exemption</u>. In the opinion of Bond Counsel, Friday, Eldredge & Clark, LLP, under existing law, assuming compliance with certain covenants described herein, (i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, (ii) interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax, (iii) interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of Arkansas income tax and (iv) the Bonds are exempt from property taxes in the State of Arkansas. See **LEGAL MATTERS**, <u>Tax Exemption</u>.

<u>Fiscal Agent</u>. The District has employed First Security Beardsley as fiscal agent to assist the District in the sale and issuance of the Bonds (the "Fiscal Agent"). **The fiscal agent is a division of Crews & Associates, Inc.** See **MISCELLANEOUS**, <u>Interest of Certain Persons</u>.

<u>Authority</u>. The Bonds are being issued under the authority of the Constitution and laws of the State of Arkansas, including particularly Amendments No. 40 and No. 74 to the Arkansas Constitution and A.C.A. §§ 6-20-1201 <u>et</u>. <u>seq</u>., and a resolution of the Board of Directors of the District (the "Resolution") and approval by the State Board of Education. See **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, Authority, and **THE RESOLUTION**.

<u>Delivery of Bonds</u>. It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery on or about May 10, 2018.

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to change.

#### **BONDS BEING OFFERED**

<u>Book-Entry Only System.</u> DTC, or its successor, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will each be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond certificate for each maturity will be issued in the principal amount of the maturity and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial

Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds securities that its participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Closing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at <a href="https://www.dtcc.com">www.dtcc.com</a>.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond (referred to herein as "Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interest in Bonds, except in the event that use of the bookentry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not affect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Redemption notices will be sent only to Cede & Co. If fewer than all of the Bonds are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the District as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal, interest and premium, if any, payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the District or Trustee, on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee, or the District, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal, interest and premium, if any, to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the District or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities depository is not obtained, Bonds are required to be printed and delivered. The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Bonds will be printed and delivered.

The information concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system set forth above has been obtained from DTC. Neither the Underwriter nor the District make any representation or warranty regarding the accuracy or completeness thereof.

So long as the Bonds are in book-entry only form, Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, will be treated as the sole owner of the Bonds for all purposes under the Resolution including receipt of all principal of and interest on the Bonds, receipt of notices, voting and requesting or directing the Trustee to take or not to take, or consenting to, certain actions under the Resolution. The District and the Trustee have no responsibility or obligation to the Participants or the Beneficial Owners with respect to (a) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any Participant; (b) the payment by any Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in respect of the principal of and interest on the Bonds; (c) the delivery or timeliness of delivery by any Participant of any notice to any Beneficial Owner which is required or permitted under the terms of the Resolution to be given to owners of Bonds; or (d) other action taken by DTC or Cede & Co. as owner of the Bonds.

Generally. The Bonds are issuable in the form and denominations and are in the total principal amount shown on the cover page, and will be dated, mature and bear interest as set out on the cover page. The Trustee will maintain books for the registration and transfer of ownership of the Bonds. Interest due on a bond on each interest payment date will be paid to the person in whose name the bond was registered at the close of business on the fifteenth day of the month (whether or not a business day) next preceding the interest payment date (the "Record Date"), irrespective of any transfer of the bond subsequent to the Record Date and prior to the interest payment date. Payment of interest shall be made by check mailed to such registered owner.

A bond may be transferred, in whole or in part (in integral multiples of \$5,000), but only upon delivery of the bond, together with a written instrument of transfer, to the Trustee. The transfer instrument must be signed by the registered owner or his attorney-in-fact or legal representative and the signature must be guaranteed by a guarantor acceptable to the Trustee. The transfer instrument shall state the name, mailing address and social security number or federal employer identification number of the transferee. Upon such transfer, the Trustee shall enter the transfer of ownership in the registration books and authenticate and deliver in the name or names of the new registered owner or

owners a new fully registered bond or bonds of authorized denomination of the same maturity and interest rate for the aggregate principal amount of the bond transferred.

<u>Authority</u>. The Bonds are being issued under the authority of the Constitution and laws of the State of Arkansas, including particularly Amendments No. 40 and No. 74 to the Arkansas Constitution and Ark. Code Ann. §§ 6-20-1201 <u>et</u>. <u>seq</u>., a resolution of the Board of Directors of the District (the "Resolution") and resolutions of the Arkansas State Board of Education. For a summary of the Resolution, see **THE RESOLUTION**.

Amendments No. 40 and No. 74 to the Arkansas Constitution require the Board of Directors of each school district to prepare and make public not less than sixty days in advance of the annual school election a proposed budget of expenditures for the support of the public schools in the District, together with a rate of tax levy sufficient to provide the funds therefor. The tax rate is divided into (1) maintenance and operation millage, (2) current expenditure millage, (3) continuing debt service millage previously voted for the retirement of existing indebtedness and (4) any additional debt service millage for proposed new bonded indebtedness. If the proposed rate of tax levy is approved at the school election it becomes the rate of tax levy to be collected for the District in the next ensuing calendar year for use in the school fiscal year commencing July 1 of the calendar year in which collected. Debt service millage, once approved, is a continuing levy until retirement of the indebtedness for which voted. Maintenance and operation millage is voted for one year only, except that if the overall rate of tax levy is disapproved in the school election the millage rate for maintenance and operation remains at the rate last approved.

The issuance of bonds by a school district is subject to the approval of the Arkansas State Board of Education, governing body of the Arkansas State Department of Education. The bonds must be offered for public sale, and the offering is subject to the approval of the Commissioner of the State Department of Education. The State Board of Education has approved the issuance of these Bonds and the Commissioner of the State Department of Education has approved the offering of the Bonds for sale. The sale and issuance of the Bonds have been, or will be, authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors of the District, the governing body of the District.

School district bonds may be issued for the purposes of acquiring sites for, building and equipping new school buildings, making additions and repairs to and equipping existing school buildings, purchasing and refurbishing school buses and for the purpose of refunding outstanding indebtedness.

Arkansas law authorizes the State Board of Education to set a maximum rate of interest for school bonds (the "Maximum Lawful Rate"). Bonds may be sold at a discount, but in no event shall the District be required to pay more than the Maximum Lawful Rate of interest on the amount received.

<u>Purpose</u>. Bonds are being issued for the purpose of refunding the District's Refunding Bonds, dated March 1, 2013 and its Construction Bonds, dated July 1, 2013 (collectively, the "Refunding"); and financing the remaining portion of the Project described as follows: constructing and equipping school facilities including an Elementary School, a Junior High School, a High School Fine Arts Building, a High School PE/Health Building, and a High School Cafeteria; demolishing existing school buildings; and constructing, refurbishing, remodeling and equipping other school facilities (the "Project"). The estimated completion date for the Project is August 2019.

<u>Sources and Uses of Funds</u>. The estimated sources and uses of funds for the Project and to accomplish the Refunding are as follows:

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds Estimated Investments Earnings** Total	\$54,775,000.00 \frac{175,000.00}{\$54,950,000.00}
Refunding Constructing and Equipping Project Bond Issuance Costs (including Underwrit Total	Uses* \$18,536,896.88 35,202,828.12 21,210,275.00 \$54,950,000.00

<sup>\*</sup>Preliminary; subject to change.

For a description of how the Bond proceeds are to be invested pending use, the provisions governing those investments, and the conditions that must be satisfied before the proceeds may be applied to their intended use, see **THE RESOLUTION**, <u>Investments</u>.

Security and Source of Payment. The Bonds will be limited, general obligations of the District, secured by a pledge of the proceeds of a continuing debt service tax voted at the 2017 school election specifically for the payment of a total proposed issue in the aggregate principal amount of \$96,000,000 (the "2017 Election Bonds"). The Series A Bonds were the first part of the 2017 Election Bonds. These Bonds are the second and final part of the 2017 Election Bonds. These Bonds and the Series A Bonds will rank on a parity of security. See **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, Security and Source of Payment.

The tax specifically voted for payment of the 2017 Election Bonds is a tax of 15.8 mills on the dollar of the assessed valuation of taxable property in the District, subject to prior pledges of 3.9 mills thereof in favor of debt evidenced by a prior bond issue. See **DEBT STRUCTURE**, Computation of Dollar Amount of Debt Service Tax Levied.

The District reserves the right to refinance all or part of the debt to which 3.9 mills of the tax voted for the 2017 Election Bonds has been previously pledged by issuing refunding bonds, and to pledge to such refunding bonds the debt service tax now pledged to the bonds refunded. If such refunding bonds are issued, the last maturity date of the refunding bonds will be not later than the last maturity date of the bonds refunded. Such refunding bonds will not be issued unless the total amount required to pay principal of and interest on the refunding bonds is less than the total amount required to pay principal of and interest on the bonds refunded.

See **DEBT STRUCTURE**, <u>Outstanding Indebtedness</u>, for a description of other debt and debt service taxes pledged.

In addition to the pledged revenues, the District will also covenant to use for payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, as and to the extent necessary, all other revenues of the District that may legally be used for the purpose. The District may not legally pay debt service from revenues derived from the tax voted for maintenance and operation of schools.

Any surplus of the pledged revenues over and above the amount necessary to insure the payment as due of principal of, interest on and trustee fees in connection with the Bonds of this issue will be released from the pledge in favor of the Bonds and may be used for other school purposes.

<sup>\*\*</sup>Assuming an interest rate of 0.50% per annum.

The Bonds are not secured by any lien on or security interest in any physical properties of the District.

<u>Developments</u>. Various elected officials, public interest groups and individuals have indicated publicly that they consider ad valorem property taxation reform to be of significant public interest. At the 2000 general election, the electors of the State voted in favor of a new constitutional amendment ("Amendment No. 79") which does the following:

- 1. Limits the amount of assessment increases following reappraisal;
- 2. Limits assessment increases for people who are disabled or who are 65 years of age;
- 3. Provides for an annual state credit against ad valorem property tax on a homestead;
- 4. Equalizes real and personal millage rates;
- 5. Provides that reassessment must occur at least once every five years; and
- 6. Provides that rollback adjustments under Amendment No. 59 shall be determined after the adjustments are made to assessed value under Amendment No. 79.

The annual state credit began for taxes due in calendar year 2001. The tax reduction is reflected on the tax bill sent to the property owner by the county collector. The taxing units within the county are entitled to reimbursement of the reduction. See **DEBT STRUCTURE**, <u>Computation</u> of Dollar Amount of Debt Service Tax Levied.

<u>Redemption</u>. The Bonds are subject to extraordinary, optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity, as follows:

- (1) <u>Extraordinary Redemption</u>. The Bonds must be redeemed from proceeds of the Bonds not needed for the purposes intended, on any interest payment date, in whole or in part, at a price equal to the principal amount being redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date, in inverse order of maturity (and by lot within a maturity in such manner as the Trustee may determine).
- (2) Optional Redemption. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the District, in whole, or in part, at any time on or after August 1, 2023, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date. If fewer than all of the Bonds are called for redemption, the particular maturities to be redeemed shall be selected by the District in its discretion. If fewer than all of the Bonds of any maturity shall be called for redemption, the particular Bonds or portion thereof to be redeemed from such maturity shall be selected by lot by the Trustee.
- (3) <u>Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption</u>. Term Bonds, if any, will be designated by the successful bidder. The Term Bonds, if any, will be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemptions in part by lot on any February 1 on or after February 1 in the years designated by the successful bidder, at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption, from installments which are required to be made in amounts sufficient to redeem on February 1 of each year the principal amount of the Bonds specified for each of the years below:

Year\* Amount

<sup>\*</sup> Table to be completed after sale of Bonds.

The District shall be entitled to reduce any mandatory sinking fund redemption obligation in any year with respect to the Term Bonds of any maturity by the principal amount of any such Term Bond previously redeemed or acquired by the District and surrendered to the Trustee.

Notice of early redemption identifying the bonds or portions thereof (which must be \$5,000 or an integral multiple thereof) to be redeemed and the date fixed for redemption shall be sent by the Trustee by mail or by other standard means, including electronic or facsimile communications, not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date to all registered owners of bonds to be redeemed. Failure to send an appropriate notice or any such notice to one or more registered owners of bonds to be redeemed shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for redemption of other bonds as to which notice of redemption is duly given and in proper and timely fashion. All such bonds or portions thereof thus called for redemption shall cease to bear interest on and after the date fixed for redemption, provided funds for redemption are on deposit with the Trustee at that time.

Notwithstanding the above, so long as the Bonds are issued in book-entry only form, if fewer than all the Bonds of an issue are called for redemption, the particular Bonds to be redeemed will be selected pursuant to the procedures established by DTC. So long as the Bonds are issued in bookentry only form, notice of redemption will be given only to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. The Trustee will not give any notice of redemption to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

Redemption of Prior Tax Bonds. The District will covenant that it will not, so long as any of these Bonds remain outstanding, redeem, prior to their maturity, any bonds of another issue for the payment of which a specific debt service tax was voted prior to issuance of these Bonds (all such bonds being hereafter referred to as "Prior Tax Bonds") unless, after such redemption, a continuing annual tax of not less than the same number of mills and of not less than the same duration as was pledged to the redeemed bonds remains pledged to these Bonds or other bonds of the District.

<u>Additional Parity Bonds</u>. No additional bonds may be issued on a parity of security with these Bonds and the Series A Bonds.

<u>Priority Among Successive Bond Issues</u>. Other additional bonds may be issued by the District from time to time in accordance with law for the purpose of financing additional capital improvements. If the District, prior to issuance of these Bonds, has reserved the right to issue additional bonds on a parity of security with previously issued bonds, such additional bonds will have a prior claim and pledge over these Bonds as to all revenues pledged to such additional bonds. See **DEBT STRUCTURE**, <u>Parity Debt</u>, for a description of any authorized and unissued parity debt. Otherwise, any additional bonds shall be subordinate to these Bonds and the pledge of revenues to these Bonds.

#### DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

<u>Area.</u> The area of the District is approximately 345.37 square miles, all of which are located in Saline County. The incorporated municipalities located, in whole or in part, within the boundaries of the District are Alexander, Bauxite, Benton, Bryant and Shannon Hills.

<u>Governmental Organization</u>. The governing body of the District is a Board of Directors, elected for staggered terms at the annual school election. The term of each Director ends at an annual school election, but the Director continues to serve until a successor has been elected and qualified. The present members of the Board of Directors of the District are as follows:

		Term
		Expires
<u>Name</u>	Business or Profession	September
Tyler Nelson	Doctor	2019
Scott Walsh	Doctor	2020
Scott Hart	Sales Consultant	2020
Danny Chism	Post Engineer at Camp Robinson/Business Owner	2021
Ben Lewellen	Sales Security Engineer	2021
Rhonda Sanders	Ark Food Bank	2022
Sandra Porter	Retired	2022

At the first regular meeting following the annual school election, the Board of Directors elects one of their number President, one of their number Vice President, and also elects a Secretary who may, but need not be, a member of the Board. These officers serve terms of one year. The present officers are: President, Scott Hart, Vice President, Scott Walsh, and Secretary, Ben Lewellen.

The Board of Directors has authority to do all things necessary for the conduct of an efficient public school system in the District.

<u>Executive Officials</u>. All employees of the District are employed by the Board of Directors. The chief executive employee is the Superintendent of Schools. The present Superintendent is Dr. Karen Walters, who has been employed by contract for a term ending June 30, 2021.

<u>Services Provided</u>. The District operates a public school system, consisting of kindergarten and grades 1 through 12, for the purpose of educating the children residing within the District. The principal funding sources for the District are: (1) funds received from the State of Arkansas, (2) ad valorem taxes on the real and tangible personal property located within the boundaries of the District (see **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, <u>Developments</u>), and (3) funds received from the United States of America.

There have been no recent major changes or interruptions in the educational services provided by the District.

School Buildings. The school buildings presently operated by the District are as follows:

		Year in Which	Present
		Construction	Condition
	Grades	Or Most Recent	(Excellent, Good,
Name of School	Housed	Renovation Completed	Fair or Poor)
Bryant Elementary	K-5	1997	Good
Collegeville Elementary	K-5	2015	Good
Davis Elementary	K-5	2015	Good
Hill Farm Elementary	K-5	2012	Good
Hurricane Creek Elementary	K-5	2007	Good
Salem Elementary	K-5	2012	Good
Springhill Elementary	K-5	2012	Good
Bethel Middle School	6-8	2006	Good
Bryant Middle School	6-8	2003	Good
Bryant High School	9-12	2012	Good

<u>School Enrollment and Population</u>. The average daily membership (enrollment) of the District and estimated population of the District for each of the last five years is as follows:

Fiscal Year	Average Daily	Estimated
Ending June 30	<u>Membership</u>	<u>Population</u>
2013	8,579	48,475
2014	8,824	49,583
2015	8,923	50,154
2016	8,955	50,879
2017	9,128	51,415

Accreditation. In accordance with the requirements of The Quality Education Act of 2003 (Subchapter 2 of Chapter 15, Title 6, Ark. Code Ann.) (the "Act"), the State Board of Education has adopted educational standards that all public elementary and secondary schools in the State must meet to be accredited. The Act provides that any school not meeting these standards will be eliminated, and that any school district operating one or more of such schools is to be dissolved and its territory annexed to another district or districts which operate all schools therein in compliance with the minimum standards. The Arkansas Department of Education (the "ADE") reviews annual reports to determine whether the school district is in compliance with the standards.

Under the ADE regulations and guidelines, schools may be classified as accredited, accredited-cited or probationary. Schools which meet all policies and standards promulgated by the ADE are classified as accredited. For those schools classified as accredited-cited or accredited-probationary, the ADE has promulgated maximum times allowable for correction of particular violations of standards. A school that has been classified as accredited-cited and does not correct the violation in the allowable time will be placed on probation. If a school in probationary status fails to comply within the allotted time frame, the school will be recommended to the State Board of Education for loss of accreditation status. For a district that falls into probationary status, the State Board of Education may take any number of actions listed in ADE's Rules Governing Standards For Accreditation of Arkansas Public Schools and School Districts, including dissolution and annexation.

The District has been classified as accredited-cited. If the District does not remedy the violation within the allotted time, it will be placed on probation.

Schools that meet the standards of the AdvancEd ("AE") may, upon request, be admitted to AE membership. Eligible schools in Arkansas and other states hold membership in the AE. None of this District's schools are members of the AE.

<u>Assessed Valuation</u>. Taxable property is valued for tax purposes as of January 1 of each year. However, the assessment process is not completed until November of the year of assessment. See **FINANCIAL INFORMATION**, <u>Assessment of Property and Collection of Property Taxes</u>. The assessed valuation of taxable property located within the boundaries of the District (as of January 1) has been as follows:

	Real	Personal	Utilities and	Total
<u>Year</u>	<u>Estate</u>	<u>Property</u>	Regulated Carriers	Assessed Value
2013	\$555,610,804	\$134,853,195	\$21,572,955	\$712,036,954
2014	574,559,614	150,550,065	22,555,280	747,664,959
2015	590,575,334	151,268,265	23,846,225	765,689,824
2016	612,693,484	163,801,080	24,632,670	801,127,234
2017	647,550,091	162,050,230	26,667,400	836,267,721

<u>Financial Institution Deposits</u>. There are no banks with principal offices within the boundaries of the District.

<u>Major Employers</u>. The principal industries, commercial and governmental entities, and other major employers within the boundaries of the District are as follows:

		Number of
Company	<b>Business or Product</b>	<b>Employees</b>
McGinty Mechanical	Heat & Air	90
Everett GMC	Automotive Sales	110
Target	Retail	115
Cracker Barrel Restaurant	Food Service	120
Academy Sports	Retail	120
Lowe's	Retail	150
Middleton Heat & Air	Heat & Air	200
City of Bryant	Government	205
Kroger	Retail	300
Wal-Mart	Discount Retail	450

Employees. The number of persons presently employed by the District are as follows:

	<u>Number</u>
Superintendent and Central District Staff	26
Principals	10
Classroom Teachers	627
Other Non-Teaching Personnel	369
TOTAL	1,032

None of these employees belong to collective bargaining groups.

#### **DEBT STRUCTURE**

<u>Outstanding Indebtedness</u>. The principal categories of indebtedness which the District is authorized to incur are commercial bonds (offered at public sale on competitive bids), revolving loan bonds and certificates of indebtedness (representing loans from the State Department of Education), installment contracts (payable in subsequent fiscal years) and postdated warrants (warrants drawn in one fiscal year for payment in a subsequent fiscal year). In addition, the District is authorized to lease property from the owner under lease agreements giving the District the option to purchase the property leased. Commercial bonds and revolving loan indebtedness are payable from debt service tax revenues. Installment contracts, postdated warrants and lease-purchase obligations are payable from maintenance and operation tax revenues.

The present outstanding debt of the District is as follows:

Date of <u>Obligations</u>	Amount Outstanding Immediately After Issuance of These Bonds	Final Maturity	Tax Rate (in mills per dollar) Voted for Payment as Rolled Back After Reassessment (applicable to real estate)
	COMMERCIAI	T RONDS	
12/01/15 07/01/17, Series A 05/01/18, Series B	\$25,895,000 41,085,000 54,775,000*	02/01/39 02/01/47 02/01/47	3.9 11.9 plus continuation of existing 3.9 Same as 07/01/17, Series A

<sup>\*</sup>Preliminary; subject to change.

## REVOLVING LOAN BONDS AND/OR CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS None

#### POST-DATED WARRANTS None

## INSTALLMENT CONTRACTS None

#### LEASE-PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS

Date of Agreement	Type of Property	<u>Term</u>	Annual <u>Rent</u>	Principal Amount Outstanding	Purchase Price (End of Term)
05/02/05	Energy Conservation	16 yrs.	\$50,091	\$137,955.19	\$0.00

<u>Parity Debt</u>. The District has not reserved the right to issue additional bonds on a parity with the outstanding debt listed above.

<u>Debt Ratio</u>. The ratio of outstanding debt after issuance of these Bonds (\$121,892,955.19) to current assessed valuation (\$836,267,721) will be 14.58%.

Computation of Dollar Amount of Debt Service Tax Levied. The most recent county-wide reassessment of taxable property was completed in Saline County in 2017. The next county-wide reassessment is scheduled to be completed for Saline County in 2022. For purposes of Amendment 59, the year in which the reassessment is completed is known as the "Base Year." For a general discussion of the reassessment requirement and its effect on assessed value and tax rate, see FINANCIAL INFORMATION, Constitutional Amendment No. 59, infra.

Constitutional Amendment No. 79 provides for an annual state credit against ad valorem property tax on a homestead in an amount not less than \$300. Effective with the assessment year 2007, the amount of the credit was increased to \$350. The tax reduction is reflected on the tax bill sent to the property owner by the county collector. Amendment No. 79 provides that the credit shall be applied in a manner that would not impair a bondholder's interest in ad valorem debt service revenue. In addition, Amendment No. 79 provides that the "General Assembly shall, by law, provide for procedures to be followed with respect to adjusting ad valorem taxes or millage pledged for bonded indebted purposes, to assure that the tax or millage levied for bonded indebtedness purposes will, at all times, provide a level of income sufficient to meet the current requirements of all principal, interest, paying agent fees, reserves, and other requirements of the bond indenture."

The taxing units within the county are entitled to reimbursement of the reduction from the annual state credit. Pursuant to legislation, the state sales tax increased by 0.5%. The purpose of the legislation is to raise revenues that the State sends back to school districts to replace the money lost as a result of the state credit. Therefore, for purposes of calculating projected revenues available for debt service discussed below, the District has assumed that it will receive debt service revenues equal to the debt service revenues it would have received prior to the adoption of Amendment No. 79.

The debt service tax levied for collection in 2018 for use in the 2018-2019 school year, and thereafter, has been computed by multiplying the 2017 assessment (\$836,267,721) by the total number of debt service mills (15.8).

For purposes of calculating revenues available for debt service, it has also been assumed that the assessed value of all property in the District will remain the same, without increase or decrease. On this basis, the total debt service tax levied in each year will be as shown under Debt Service Schedule and Coverage, below.

<u>Debt Service Schedule and Coverage</u>. For purposes of the following table, it is assumed that the assumptions made in <u>Computation of Dollar Amount of Debt Service Tax Levied</u> are accurate and that the annual rate of tax collections in each year will be 96.59% (see **FINANCIAL INFORMATION**, <u>Collection of Taxes</u>, for the actual historical rate of collection). On this basis, the annual debt service requirements for previously issued bonds and these Bonds, the revenues available for debt service and coverage are as follows:

	Total Principal			
Fiscal Year	and Interest of	Total Principal &	Total Revenues	
Ending	Previously	Interest of	From Debt	
<u>June 30</u>	<b>Issued Bonds</b>	These Bonds*	Service Mills	<u>Coverage</u>
2019	\$3,964,550	\$3,071,798	\$12,762,964	1.81
2020	3,960,700	3,073,850	12,762,964	1.81
2021	3,950,350	3,072,063	12,762,964	1.82
2022	3,953,650	3,073,028	12,762,964	1.82
2023	3,955,150	3,070,938	12,762,964	1.82
2024	3,954,850	3,071,350	12,762,964	1.82
2025	3,952,750	3,074,743	12,762,964	1.82
2026	3,958,850	3,075,243	12,762,964	1.81
2027	3,952,850	3,072,745	12,762,964	1.82
2028	3,955,050	3,071,420	12,762,964	1.82
2029	3,960,150	3,072,465	12,762,964	1.81
2030	3,958,000	3,072,578	12,762,964	1.82
2031	3,963,750	3,075,273	12,762,964	1.81
2032	3,958,900	3,075,333	12,762,964	1.81
2033	3,961,700	3,071,855	12,762,964	1.81
2034	3,960,150	3,074,730	12,762,964	1.81
2035	3,957,388	3,074,390	12,762,964	1.82
2036	3,956,638	3,074,830	12,762,964	1.82
2037	3,970,863	3,071,705	12,762,964	1.81
2038	3,976,200	3,074,945	12,762,964	1.81
2039	3,982,825	3,070,145	12,762,964	1.81
2040	2,239,350	3,071,408	12,762,964	2.40
2041	2,239,850	3,074,398	12,762,964	2.40
2042	2,238,250	3,073,923	12,762,964	2.40
2043	2,239,550	3,073,763	12,762,964	2.40
2044	2,243,575	3,074,898	12,762,964	2.40
2045	2,245,150	3,072,133	12,762,964	2.40
2046	2,244,275	3,074,100	12,762,964	2.40
2047	2,245,950	3,071,723	12,762,964	2.40

<sup>\*</sup>Assuming a true interest cost of 3.83% per annum.

<u>Pledge of State Aid.</u> A.C.A. §6-20-1204 provides that if the Trustee does not receive the bond payment from the District at least five (5) calendar days before the principal or interest is due under the Resolution, the Department of Education immediately shall cure any deficiency in payment by making payment in the full amount of the deficiency to the Trustee. If the department makes the bond payment, and the District fails to remit the full amount to the department, the department will withhold from the District the next distribution of state funding.

<u>Uniform Rate of Tax.</u> Amendment No. 74 establishes a statewide 25-mill property tax minimum for maintenance and operation of the public schools (the "Uniform Rate of Tax"). The Uniform Rate of Tax replaces that portion of local school district ad valorem taxes available for maintenance and operation of schools.

<u>Defaults</u>. No debt obligations of the District have been in default as to principal or interest payments or in any other material respect at any time in the last 25 years.

#### THE RESOLUTION

Set forth below is a summary of certain provisions of the Resolution. This summary does not purport to be comprehensive and reference is made to the full text of the Resolution for a complete description of its provisions.

Bond Fund. The pledged revenues will be deposited into a Bond Fund which will be held by, or under the direction of, the District. Moneys in the Bond Fund will be used solely for the payment of principal of, interest on and Trustee's fees in connection with the Bonds, except as otherwise specifically provided in the Resolution. Any surplus of the pledged revenues over and above the amount necessary to insure the payment as due of principal of, interest on and Trustee's fees in connection with the Bonds will be released from the pledge and may be withdrawn from the Bond Fund and used for other school purposes. The Treasurer of the District will withdraw from the Bond Fund and deposit with the Trustee, not later than fifteen (15) calendar days before each interest payment date and not later than fifteen (15) calendar days before the due date of any Trustee fees, moneys in an amount equal to the amount of such Bonds or interest, or Trustee's fees, for the sole purpose of paying the same, and the Trustee shall apply such moneys for such purpose.

<u>Deposit of Sale Proceeds</u>. The Bonds will be delivered to the Trustee upon payment by the purchaser of the Bonds in cash of the purchase price, plus accrued interest from the date of the Bonds to the date of delivery ("total sale proceeds"). The accrued interest plus the additional amount, if any, necessary, together with accrued interest, to pay interest on the Bonds until revenues from tax collections are available in sufficient amount therefor will be deposited in the Bond Fund. The amount necessary to accomplish the Refunding will be applied for such purpose. The balance of the total sale proceeds will be deposited in the Construction Fund created by the Resolution (the "Construction Fund"). Amounts in the Construction Fund will be disbursed for costs and expenses of the Project (including interest on the Bonds during the construction period) upon filing in the official records pertaining to said Fund of a certificate of the District setting forth the information provided for in the Resolution.

<u>Investments</u>. (a) The District may, from time to time invest moneys held for the credit of the Construction Fund in Authorized Investments or in bank certificates of deposit.

- (b) The District may, from time to time, invest moneys held for the credit of the Bond Fund in Authorized Investments or in bank certificates of deposit the principal of and interest on which are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
- (c) Investments shall remain a part of the Fund from which the investment was made. All earnings and profits from investments shall be credited to and all losses charged against, the Fund from which the investment was made.
- (d) The term "Authorized Investments" means direct obligations of the United States of America or obligations the principal of and interest on which are fully guaranteed by the United States of America.

<u>Trustee</u>. The Trustee shall only be responsible for the exercise of good faith and reasonable prudence in the execution of its trust. The Trustee is not required to take any action for the protection of Bondholders unless it has been requested to do so in writing by the holders of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding and offered reasonable security and indemnity against the cost, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby.

The Trustee may resign by giving notice in writing to the Secretary of the Board of Directors. Such resignation shall be effective upon the appointment of a successor Trustee by the District and acceptance of appointment by the successor. If the District fails to appoint a successor Trustee within 30 days of receiving notice of resignation, the Trustee may apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for appointment of a successor. The holders of a majority in principal amount of outstanding Bonds, or the Board of Directors of the District, may at any time, with or without cause, remove the Trustee and appoint a successor Trustee.

Modification of Terms of Bonds. The terms of the Bonds and the Resolution will constitute a contract between the District and the registered owners of the Bonds. The owners of not less than 75% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding have the right, from time to time, to consent to the adoption by the District of resolutions modifying any of the terms or provisions contained in the bonds or the Resolution; provided, however, there shall not be permitted (a) any extension of the maturity of the principal of or interest on any bond, or (b) a reduction in the principal amount of any bond or the rate of interest thereon, or (c) the creation of any additional pledge on the revenues pledged to the Bonds other than as authorized in the Resolution, or (d) a privilege or priority of any bond or bonds over any other bond or bonds, or (e) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for such consent.

<u>Defeasance.</u> When all of the Bonds shall have been paid or deemed paid, the pledge in favor of the Bonds (see **BONDS BEING OFFERED**, <u>Security and Source of Payment</u>, <u>supra</u>) shall be discharged and satisfied. A Bond shall be deemed paid when there shall have been deposited in trust with the Trustee or with another bank or trust company (which other bank or trust company must be a member of the Federal Reserve System), as escrow agent under an escrow deposit agreement requiring the escrow agent to apply the proceeds of the deposit to pay the principal of and interest on the Bond as due at maturity or upon redemption prior to maturity, moneys or Government Securities sufficient to pay when due the principal of and interest on the bond. If the principal of the Bond is to become due by redemption prior to maturity, notice of such redemption must have been duly given or provided for. "Government Securities" shall mean direct or fully guaranteed obligations of the United States of America, noncallable, maturing on or prior to the maturity or redemption date of the bond. In determining the sufficiency of a deposit there shall be considered the principal amount of such Government Securities and interest to be earned thereon until their maturity.

<u>Defaults and Remedies</u>. If there is any default in the payment of the principal of or interest on any Bond, or if the District defaults in the performance of any other covenant in the Resolution, the Trustee may, and upon the written request of the owners of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding shall, by proper suit compel the performance of the duties of the officials of the District under the Constitution and laws of the State of Arkansas and under the Resolution and protect and enforce the rights of the owners by instituting appropriate proceedings at law or in equity or by other action deemed necessary or desirable by the Trustee. If any default in the payment of principal or interest continues for 30 days the Trustee may, and upon the request of the owners of not less than 10% in principal amount of the then outstanding Bonds shall, declare all outstanding Bonds immediately due and payable together with accrued interest thereon.

No owner of any bond shall have any right to institute any suit, action, mandamus or other proceeding in equity or at law for the protection or enforcement of any right under the Bonds or the Resolution or under the Constitution and laws of the State of Arkansas, unless such owner previously shall have given written notice to the Trustee of the default, and unless the owners of not less than

10% in principal amount of the then outstanding Bonds shall have made written request of the Trustee to take action, shall have afforded the Trustee a reasonable opportunity to take such action, and shall have offered to the Trustee reasonable security and indemnity against the cost, expenses and liabilities to be incurred and the Trustee shall have refused or neglected to comply with such request within a reasonable time. No one or more owners of the Bonds shall have any right in any manner by his or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the security of the Resolution, or to enforce any right thereunder except in the manner provided in the Resolution. All proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner provided in the Resolution and for the benefit of all owners of outstanding Bonds. Any individual rights of action are restricted by the Resolution to the rights and remedies therein provided. Nothing shall, however, affect or impair the right of any owner to enforce the payment of the principal of and interest on any bond at and after the maturity thereof.

Action may be taken by the Trustee without possession of any bond, and any such action shall be brought in the name of the Trustee and for the benefits of all the owners of bonds.

No delay or omission of the Trustee or any owner of a bond to exercise any right or power accrued upon any default shall impair any such right or power or be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein, and every power and remedy given to the Trustee and to the owners of the Bonds may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.

The Trustee may, and upon the written request of the owners of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding shall, waiver any default which shall have been remedied before the entry of final judgment or decree in any suit, action or proceeding or before the completion of the enforcement of any other remedy. No such waiver shall extend to or affect any other existing or subsequent default or defaults or impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon.

There is no requirement that the District furnish periodic evidence as to the absence of default or as to the compliance with the terms of the Bonds, the Resolution or law.

#### FINANCIAL INFORMATION

<u>Sources and Uses of Funds</u>. The following combined summary of Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balances are taken from the District's 2015, 2016 and 2017 Audits. For complete information concerning the District, please review the actual Audits at <a href="www.arklegaudit.gov/">www.arklegaudit.gov/</a>.

	<u>2015</u>	<u>2016</u>	<u>2017</u>
Revenues			
Property Taxes	\$26,184,910	\$27,474,654	\$28,313,672
State Assistance	45,922,712	45,558,416	46,730,790
Federal Assistance	64,150	80,895	46,226
Activity Revenues	674,232	594,215	662,705
Meal Sales	0	0	0
Investment Income	63,112	85,808	51,808
Other Revenues	80,028	94,810	197,527
REVENUES	\$72,989,144	\$73,888,798	\$76,002,728
<b>Expenditures</b>	<u>2015</u>	<u>2016</u>	<u>2017</u>
Regular Programs	\$29,795,656	\$30,145,101	\$31,519,576
Special Education	6,269,682	6,496,391	6,435,744
Career Education Programs	1,965,543	1,785,680	1,792,713
Compensatory Education Programs	98,468	460,017	303,933
Other Instructional Programs	1,916,239	2,114,597	2,394,940
Support Services	23,399,525	22,348,854	24,927,173
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services	104,163	26,179	269,474
Non-Programmed Costs	0	0	0
Activity Expenditures	555,901	574,083	706,201
Capital Outlay	0	0	0
Debt Service:			
Principal Retirement	58,001	37,713	39,622
Interest and Fiscal Charges	15,715	12,378	10,469
EXPENDITURES	\$64,178,893	\$64,000,993	\$68,399,845
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)			
EXPENDITURES	8,810,251	9,887,805	7,602,883
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)	(6,883,740)	(10,440,351)	(11,321,548)
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER	, , , , , ,		
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES			
AND OTHER USES	1,926,511	(552,546)	(3,718,665)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR	10,623,650	12,550,161	11,997,615
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR	\$12,550,161	\$11,997,615	\$8,278,950

<u>Collection of Taxes</u>. Tax collections of the ad valorem tax levied by the District are shown in the following table. School taxes voted at the school election are collected in the next calendar year and normally received by and used by the District during the school fiscal year beginning in such calendar year.

Calendar	School	Amount of	Rate of
<u>Year</u>	Tax Levy	<u>Collections</u>	Collections (%)
2012	\$24,065,422	\$23,282,688	96.75
2013	25,327,395	24,455,506	96.56
2014	26,487,775	25,342,727	95.68
2015	27,813,136	27,032,476	97.19
2016	28,483,661	27,561,727	96.76

5-year average rate of collections – 96.59%

Overlapping Ad Valorem Taxes. The ad valorem taxing entities in the State of Arkansas are municipalities, counties, school districts and community college districts. All taxable property located within the boundaries of a taxing entity is subject to taxation by that entity. Thus property within the District is also subject to county ad valorem taxes. Property located within a municipality and/or within a community college district is also subject to taxation by that entity or entities. The ad valorem taxing entities whose boundaries overlap the District and their real estate ad valorem tax rates are:

Name of	Total Tax
Overlapping Entity	Rate (in mills)
Saline County	9.7
City of Alexander	5.0
City of Bauxite	5.0
City of Benton	3.7
City of Bryant	1.9
City of Shannon Hills	3.0

Assessment of Property and Collection of Property Taxes. (a) Under Amendment No. 59 to the Arkansas Constitution, all property is subject to taxation except for the following exempt categories: (i) public property used exclusively for public purposes; (ii) churches used as such; (iii) cemeteries used exclusively as such; (iv) school buildings and apparatus; (v) libraries and grounds used exclusively for school purposes; (vi) buildings, grounds and materials used exclusively for public charity; and (vii) intangible personal property to the extent the General Assembly has exempted it from taxation, provided that it be taxed at a lower rate, or provided for its taxation on a basis other than ad valorem. Amendment No. 59 also authorizes the General Assembly to exempt from taxation the first \$20,000 of value of a homestead of a taxpayer 65 years of age or older.

Amendment No. 59 provides that, except as otherwise provided therein in connection with the transition period following a county-wide reassessment (see <u>Constitutional Amendment Nos. 59 and 79, infra</u>), (1) residential property used solely as the principal place of residence of the owner shall be assessed in accordance with its value as a residence, (2) land (but not improvements thereon) used primarily for agricultural, pasture, timber, residential and commercial purposes shall be assessed upon the basis of its value for such use, and (3) all other real and tangible personal property subject to taxation shall be assessed according to its value (the Arkansas Supreme Court has held that the unqualified word "value," as used in a prior, substantially identical, constitutional provision, means "current market value").

(b) Property owned by public utilities and common carriers and "used and/or held for use in the operation of the company . . ." is assessed for tax purposes by the Tax Division of the Arkansas

Public Service Commission. A.C.A. § 26-26-1605 provides that the Tax Division "shall assess the property at its true and full market or actual value" and that all utility property of a company, whether located within or without the State of Arkansas, is to be valued as a unit. Annually, the company files a report with the Tax Division. The Tax Division reviews these reports, along with other reports (such as reports to shareholders, the Federal Communications Commission, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Interstate Commerce Commission), to determine the value of the property. Valuation is currently made on the basis of a formula, as set forth in A.C.A. § 26-26-1607, with consideration given to (i) original cost less depreciation, replacement cost less depreciation or reconstruction cost less depreciation; (ii) market value of capital stock and funded debt; and (iii) capitalization of income. As provided in A.C.A. § 26-26-1611, once the value of a company's property as a unit is determined, the Tax Division removes the value allocable to out-of-state property and assigns the remainder among Arkansas taxing units on the basis of value within each jurisdiction. The Tax Division certifies the assessment to the county assessor who enters the assessment as certified on the county assessment roll. County officials have no authority to change such assessment. See **LEGAL MATTERS**, Legal Proceedings.

All other property is assessed by the elected assessor of each Arkansas county (or other official or officials designated by law). This includes both real and tangible personal property. Amendment No. 79 to the Arkansas Constitution requires each county to appraise all market value real estate normally assessed by the county assessor at its full and fair value at a minimum of once every five (5) years.

(c) Amendment No. 79 requires the county assessor (or other official or officials designated by law), after each county-wide reappraisal, to compare the assessed value of each parcel of real property reappraised or reassessed to the prior year's assessed value. If the assessed value of the parcel increased, then the assessed value of that parcel must be adjusted as provided below.

Subject to subsection (e) below, if the parcel is not the homestead and principal place of residence ("homestead") of a taxpayer, then any increase in the assessed value in the first year after reappraisal cannot be greater than 10% (or 5% if the parcel is the taxpayer's homestead) of the assessed value for the previous year. For each year thereafter, the assessed value shall increase by an additional 10% (or 5% if the parcel is the taxpayer's homestead) of the assessed value for the year preceding the first assessment resulting from reappraisal; however, the increase cannot exceed the assessed value determined by the reappraisal prior to adjustment under Amendment No. 79.

For property owned by public utilities and common carriers, any annual increase in the assessed value cannot exceed more than 10% of the assessed value for the previous year. The provisions of this subsection (c) do not apply to newly discovered real property, new construction or substantial improvements to real property.

(d) If a homestead is purchased or constructed on or after January 1, 2001 by a disabled person or by a person over age 65, then that parcel will be assessed based on the lower of the assessed value as of the date of purchase (or construction) or a later assessed value. If a person is disabled or is at least 65 years of age and owns a homestead on January 1, 2001, then the homestead will be assessed based on the lower of the assessed value on January 1, 2001 or a later assessed value. When a person becomes disabled or reaches age 65 on or after January 1, 2001, that person's homestead should thereafter be assessed based on the lower of the assessed value on the person's 65th birthday, on the date the person becomes disabled or a later assessed value. This subsection (d) does not apply to substantial improvements to real property. For real property subject to subsection (e) below, the applicable date in this subsection (d), in lieu of January 1, 2001, is January 1 of the year following the completion of the adjustments to assessed value required in subsection (e).

(e) If, however, there has been no county-wide reappraisal and resulting assessed value of property between January 1, 1986 and December 31, 2000, then real property in that county is adjusted differently. In that case, the assessor (or other official or officials designated by law) compares the assessed value of each parcel to the assessed value of the parcel for the previous year. If the assessed value of the parcel increases, then the assessed value of the parcel for the year in which the parcel is reappraised or reassessed is adjusted by adding one-third (1/3) of the increase to the assessed value for the year prior to appraisal or reassessment. An additional one-third (1/3) of the increase is added in each of the next two (2) years.

The adjustment contemplated by subsection (e) does not apply to the property of public utilities or common carriers. No adjustment will be made for newly discovered real property, new construction or substantial improvements to real property.

(f) Property is currently assessed in an amount equal to 20% of its value. The percentage can be increased or decreased by the General Assembly.

The total taxes levied by all taxing authorities are collected together by the county collector of the county in which the property is located in the calendar year immediately following the year in which levied. Taxes are due and payable between the first business day in March and October 15, inclusive. Taxes not paid by October 15 are delinquent and subject to a 10% penalty. Real estate as to which taxes are delinquent for two successive years is certified to the State Land Commissioner, who offers the property for sale. The proceeds of such sale are distributed among the taxing authorities. Delinquent real property may be redeemed by the taxpayer within two years of the delinquency. Delinquent personal property taxes may be collected by distraint and public sale of the taxpayer's property.

<u>Constitutional Amendment Affecting Personal Property Taxes.</u> At the 1992 general election, a Constitutional amendment was approved which exempts from all personal property taxes items of household furniture and furnishings, clothing, appliances and other personal property used within the home. The effective date of the amendment was January 1, 1993.

<u>Constitutional Amendment Nos. 59 and 79</u>. Prior to the adoption of Amendment No. 59 to the Arkansas Constitution, the Constitution mandated that:

"All property subject to taxation shall be taxed according to its value, that value to be ascertained in such manner as the General Assembly shall direct, making the same equal and uniform throughout the State. No one species of property from which a tax may be collected shall be taxed higher than other species of property of equal value . . . ."

In the case of <u>Arkansas Public Service Commission v. Pulaski County Board of Equalization</u>, 266 Ark. 64, 582 S.W.2d 942 (June 25, 1979), the Supreme Court of Arkansas held that the then current assessment process, as prescribed by certain legislation and administrative regulations, was in violation of the Constitutional mandate in that (1) it provided for the assessment of certain property on the basis of "use value" as opposed to market value, (2) it did not provide for equal and uniform assessments throughout the State and (3) it provided for assessments based on past, as opposed to current, market values. The Court ordered a statewide reassessment to bring the assessments into conformity with the constitutional requirements. It was provided that the reassessment would be completed over a five year period, with 15 of the 75 counties in the State to be reassessed each year. The reassessment was accomplished in calendar years 1981 through 1985.

Legislative studies indicated that the effect of the Court-ordered reassessment would be to substantially increase real estate assessments in most or all counties of the State, with the result being, if tax rates remained the same, to substantially increase real estate taxes. The Arkansas General

Assembly submitted to the electors of the State a proposed Constitutional amendment designed to prevent the substantial tax increase that would otherwise result from the reassessment. The proposed Amendment was approved at the 1980 General Election and is now Amendment No. 59 to the Arkansas Constitution.

At the 2000 general election, Constitutional Amendment No. 79 was adopted by a majority of the voters and went into effect on January 1, 2001. Among other things, Amendment No. 79 allows for an annual state credit against ad valorem property tax on a homestead in the amount of not less than \$300. The credit must not be applied in a manner that would impair a bondholder's interest in ad valorem debt service revenues.

Amendment No. 59 provides that whenever a county-wide reassessment results in an increase of assessed value of 10% or more, the tax rate of each taxing unit on property located in that county is to be adjusted as provided in the Amendment. The year in which the reassessment is completed is designated the "Base Year." The assessed valuation for the Base Year is based on the reassessment. Amendment No. 79 requires that rollback adjustments under Amendment No. 59 be determined after the adjustments are made to assessed value under Amendment No. 79 (see FINANCIAL INFORMATION, Assessment of Property and Collection of Property Taxes).

The tax rate applicable to other real property is computed by (1) deducting from the Base Year assessed value of the real estate the assessed value of newly-discovered real estate and new construction and improvements to real property to arrive at the reassessed value of previously assessed real property, (2) determining the tax rate necessary to produce from the previously assessed real property (on the basis of the Base Year assessment) the same amount of revenues produced from such property in the Base Year (on the basis of the last previous assessed value and the tax rate applicable to collections in the Base Year), and (3) either (a) fixing the tax rate determined in (2) as the tax rate for the real property, including newly-discovered real property and new construction and improvements to real estate, or (b) if the tax rate so fixed would produce less than 110% of the revenues from real estate produced in the Base Year, increasing the tax rate in an amount sufficient to produce such 110% of revenues.

The General Assembly, in Act No. 848 of 1981, implemented the procedures of Amendment No. 59. A.C.A. § 26-26-404, provides that the computation is to be made separately for each tax source or millage levy (in the case of the school districts this would require separate computations for operation and maintenance millage and debt service millage), with the new tax rate for each millage levy to be rounded up to the nearest 1/10 mill. In the case of debt service millage, the tax rate as so adjusted will continue as the continuing annual tax rate until retirement of the bonds to which pledged. The adjusted rate for operation and maintenance millage would be subject to change at each annual school election in accordance with law.

Amendment No. 79 provides that the tax rate for personal property and property of public utilities and regulated carriers should be the same as that for real property. Personal property rates currently not equal to real property rates should be reduced to the level of the real property rate unless a higher rate is "necessary to provide a level of income sufficient to meet the current requirements of all principal, interest, paying agent fees, reserves, and other requirements" of a bond issue.

Amendment No. 59 contains the following specific provision in regard to debt service millage:

"The General Assembly shall, by law, provide for procedures to be followed with respect to adjusting ad valorem taxes or millage pledged for bonded indebtedness purposes, to assure that the adjusted or rolled-back rate of tax or millage levied for bonded indebtedness purposes will, at all times, provide a level of income sufficient to meet the current requirements of all principal, interest, Paying Agent's fees, reserves, and other requirements of the bond indenture."

### A.C.A. § 26-26-402(b) provides:

"If it is determined that the adjustment or rollback of millages as provided for herein will render income from millages pledged to secure any bonded indebtedness insufficient to meet the current requirements of all principal, interest, paying agent fees, reserves and other requirements of a bond indenture any such pledged millage shall be rolled back or adjusted only to a level which will produce at least a level of income sufficient to meet the current requirements of all principal, interest, paying agent fees, reserves, and other requirements of the bond indenture."

If the assessed value of all classes of taxable property located in a school district remain at the same level, without increase or decrease, and the total school tax rates applicable to real and personal property remain constant, then the annual revenues derived from taxable real and personal property will be the same in each year. This would be true of annual revenues available for debt service on bonds, as well as other annual revenues of the district.

<u>Major Taxpayers</u>. For 2017 taxes levied for collection in 2018 (based on the 2017 assessed valuation), the top ten taxpayers within the boundaries of the District are:

		Percentage of
		District's
Name	Assessed Value	Assessed Value (%)
First Electric Cooperative	\$8,754,549	1.05
Everett Buick Pontiac GMC	6,014,897	0.72
Almantis Inc	4,670,442	0.56
Saint-Gobain/Norton	3,984,009	0.48
Entergy Arkansas Inc	3,791,675	0.45
Coorstek Inc	3,631,277	0.43
Kroger Limited Partnership	3,212,625	0.38
Union Pacific System	3,188,626	0.38
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust	2,626,808	0.31
Benton Sec Hwy 5 & Alcoa LP	2,541,123	0.30

#### **LEGAL MATTERS**

Litigation Over State Funding for Schools. In an Order issued November 9, 1994, the Honorable Annabelle C. Imber held that the existing state funding system for public education violated the equal protection provision of the Arkansas Constitution and violated Article 14, § 1 of the Arkansas Constitution by "failing to provide a general, suitable and efficient system of free public education." Lake View School Dist. No. 25 of Phillips County, Arkansas v. Jim Guy Tucker, Case No. 12-5318 (1994). After years of litigation and legislation, the Arkansas Supreme Court concluded (on May 31, 2007) that the system of public school financing was now in constitutional compliance.

At the 1996 general election, a Constitutional Amendment was passed ("Amendment No. 74") which establishes a statewide 25-mill property tax minimum for maintenance and operation of the public schools (the "Uniform Rate of Tax"). The Uniform Rate of Tax replaces that portion of local school district ad valorem taxes available for maintenance and operation. The Uniform Rate of Tax is to be collected in the same manner as other school property taxes, but the revenues generated from the Uniform Rate of Tax are remitted to the State Treasurer for distribution to the school districts.

<u>Legal Proceedings</u>. No litigation is pending, or to the best knowledge of the District threatened, questioning the existence of the District, its boundaries, the assessed value of taxable property located within the District, any taxes levied by the District, the title of any member of the Board of Directors to his office, or questioning the authority of the District to issue the Bonds or any proceedings relating thereto.

<u>Legal Opinion</u>. Issuance of the Bonds is subject to the unqualified approving opinion of Friday, Eldredge & Clark, LLP, Bond Counsel, to the effect that the Bonds have been lawfully issued under the Constitution and laws of the State of Arkansas and constitute valid, binding and enforceable obligations of the District.

<u>Tax Exemption</u>. In the opinion of Friday, Eldredge & Clark, LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing law, the interest on the Bonds is exempt from Arkansas income tax and from property taxes.

Also, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds under existing law (a) is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and (b) is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. The opinion set forth above is subject to the condition that the District comply with all requirements of the Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be (or continue to be) excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. These requirements generally relate to arbitrage and the use of the proceeds of the Bonds and the Project. Failure to comply with certain of such requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be so included in gross income retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The District has covenanted to comply with all such requirements.

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should be aware that (i) with respect to insurance companies subject to the tax imposed by Section 831 of the Code, Section 832(b)(5)(B) (i) reduces the deduction for loss reserves by 15 percent of the sum of certain items, including interest on the Bonds, (ii) interest on the Bonds earned by certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States could be subject to a branch profits tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code, (iii) passive investment income including interest on the Bonds may be subject to federal income taxation under Section 1375 of the Code for Subchapter S corporations that have Subchapter C earnings and profits at the close of the taxable year if greater than 25% of the gross receipts of such Subchapter S corporation is passive investment income, and (iv) Section 86 of the Code requires recipients of certain Social Security and certain Railroad Retirement benefits to take into account in determining gross income, receipts or accruals of interest on the Bonds.

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should be further aware that Section 265 of the Code denies a deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry the Bonds or, in the case of a financial institution, that portion of a holder's interest expense allocated to interest on the Bonds, except with respect to certain financial institutions (within the meaning of Section 265(b)(5) of the Code).

Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court decisions may cause interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to federal income taxation or otherwise prevent holders of the Bonds from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. On December 20, 2017, Congress passed The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Tax Legislation"), which, for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, among other things, significantly changes the income tax rates for individuals and corporations, modifies the current provisions relative to the federal alternative minimum tax on individuals and eliminates the federal alternative minimum tax for corporations. The President signed the Tax Legislation on December 22, 2017. The Tax Legislation or the introduction or enactment of any other legislative proposals or clarification of the Code or court decisions may affect, perhaps significantly, the market price for, or marketability of, the Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax

advisors regarding any proposed or enacted federal or state tax legislation (including particularly, without limitation, the Tax Legislation), regulations or litigation, as to which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion.

<u>Non-Litigation Certificate</u>. Upon delivery of the Bonds the District will furnish a certificate to the effect that no litigation not described in the Official Statement is then pending which would affect the validity of or security for the Bonds.

Official Statement Certificate. Upon delivery of the Bonds, the District will furnish a certificate to the effect that the Official Statement does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

#### CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, which will be executed by the District.

<u>Purpose of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate</u>. The Continuing Disclosure Certificate describes the District's continuing obligation to provide certain financial and other information with respect to the Bonds, and is for the benefit of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

Provision of Annual Financial Information and Operating Data. The District has agreed to provide within ninety (90) days after the end of the District's fiscal year, its Annual Financial Report ("AFR"). The AFR will include, among other things, the information contained under **DESCRIPTION OF** THE SCHOOL DISTRICT, Assessed Valuation, DEBT STRUCTURE, Outstanding Indebtedness, DEBT STRUCTURE, Debt Service Schedule and Coverage, FINANCIAL INFORMATION, Sources and Uses of Funds, and FINANCIAL INFORMATION, Collection of Taxes. The District will also provide its audit within ninety (90) days after the audit has been completed and received by the District. The annual financial statements shall be prepared using accounting practices prescribed by A.C.A. § 10-4-313 as it may be amended from time to time, or any successor statute, and shall be audited by the Legislative Joint Auditing Committee, Division of Legislative Audit of the State of Arkansas, or by an independent certified public accountant. The District shall also provide, not later than ninety (90) days after the end of the District's fiscal year, its LEA Financial Report. Additionally, the District will provide timely notice of the occurrence of listed events relating to the Bonds as hereinafter described. The District has agreed to provide this information in an effort to comply with Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, as the same may be amended from time to time (the "Rule").

Any or all of the foregoing information may be incorporated by reference from other documents, including official statements of debt issues with respect to the District that are available to the public on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ("MSRB") website or filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

<u>Notice of Listed Events</u>. The District agrees that it will furnish to the MSRB, not later than ten (10) business days after the occurrence of such event, notice of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

- (a) principal and interest payment delinquencies;
- (b) non-payment related defaults, if material;
- (c) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

- (d) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
- (e) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
- (f) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events affecting the tax-exempt status of the security;
  - (g) modifications to rights of security holders, if material;
  - (h) bond calls, if material;
  - (i) defeasances and tender offers;
- (j) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material;
  - (k) rating changes;
  - (l) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person;
- (m) the consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving an obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and
- (n) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material.

The District further agrees that it will furnish to the MSRB notice of any failure of the District to provide the annual financial information or operating data required hereunder on or before the date specified.

<u>District to Disseminate Information and Notices</u>. The District agrees to disseminate the AFR to the MSRB, and to disseminate any notice of a material event specified above to the MSRB.

<u>Amendment; Waiver</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the District may amend the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

- (a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(A), 4, or 5(A) of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or the type of business conducted;
- (b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and
- (c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the owners of the Bonds in the same manner as provided in the Resolution for amendments to the Resolution with the consent of

owners, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the owners or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the District shall describe such amendment in the next AFR, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the District. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(B) of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.

Additional Information. Nothing in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any report or notice made hereunder, in addition to that which is required by the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. If the District chooses to include any information in any report or notice made hereunder in addition to that which is specifically required by the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the District shall have no obligation under the Continuing Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any future report or notice.

Noncompliance. In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any provision of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, any beneficial owner may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. Noncompliance with the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Resolution, and the sole remedy under the Disclosure Agreement in the event of any failure of the District to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

#### CONTINUING DISCLOSURE PAST COMPLIANCE

While the District has not made any determination as to materiality, the following charts reflect the District's compliance and non-compliance with previous undertakings under the Rule for the past five (5) years.

# Annual Financial Information and Operating Data ("Annual Report")

Pursuant to previous Continuing Disclosure undertakings by the District, the District has agreed to provide to the MSRB its Annual Report within ninety (90) days after the end of each fiscal year (the "Submittal Deadline").

Fiscal Year		40	Status of Material
Ending June 30	Submittal Deadline	Date Filed <sup>(1)</sup>	Compliance
2013	09/28/13	09/26/13	Compliant
2014	09/28/14	09/26/14	Compliant
2015	09/28/15	08/31/15	Compliant
2016	09/28/16	09/26/16	Compliant
2017	09/28/17	09/27/17	Compliant

<sup>(1)</sup> Actual date Annual Report was filed on MSRB's EMMA portal.

# Audited Financial Statements ("AFS")

The Continuing Disclosure undertakings by the District in connection with bonds issued prior to the Series A Bonds provided that the AFS be filed with the MSRB as part of its Annual Report. If the audit was not available at the time of the Annual Report, then the District agreed to provide the AFS in a timely manner. For these Bonds and the Series A Bonds, the District has agreed to provide to the MSRB its AFS within ninety (90) days after the audit has been completed and received by the District.

Audit for Fiscal	Audit Received		Status of Material
Year Ending June 30	by District	Date Filed <sup>(1)</sup>	Compliance
2012	12/06/12	02/25/13	Compliant
2013	03/13/14	04/01/14	Compliant
2014	01/23/15	03/18/15	Compliant
2015	02/29/16	03/29/16	Compliant
2016	02/16/17	03/17/17	Compliant

<sup>(1)</sup> Actual date AFS was filed on MSRB's EMMA portal.

#### Listed Events

Within ten (10) business days after the occurrence of a Listed Event set forth in previous Continuing Disclosure undertakings (the "Listed Event"), the District has agreed to provide a notice of such Listed Event to the MSRB.

The Listed	Date of	(4)	Status of Material
Event	Occurrence	Date Filed <sup>(1)</sup>	Compliance
Rating Change	09/27/13	10/02/13	Compliant
Rating Change	10/11/13	10/18/13	Compliant

<sup>(1)</sup> Actual date Listed Event was filed on MSRB's EMMA portal.

The District has taken steps to ensure that the Annual Reports, AFS and Listed Events are timely filed as required by its continuing disclosure undertakings.

## **MISCELLANEOUS**

Bond Rating. The District has applied for an underlying from Moody's Investor Service.	rating and an enhanced rating to the Bonds
<u>Underwriting</u> . The Underwriter has purchased the Borcompetitive bids at a price of \$ plus acc the date of delivery to the Underwriter.	ands from the District at public sale upon crued interest from the date of the Bonds to
Interest of Certain Persons. The District has employed Fassist the District in the sale and issuance of the Bonds. Crews & Associates, Inc. The Fiscal Agent has employe Counsel. Neither the Fiscal Agent nor Bond Counsel will until the Bonds are sold and delivered.	. First Security Beardsley is a division of ed Friday, Eldredge & Clark, LLP, as Bond
The Board of Directors of the District has authority Official Statement.	rized the preparation and distribution of this
	ANT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 25 OF INE COUNTY, ARKANSAS
Ву _	Scott Beardsley FIRST SECURITY BEARDSLEY FISCAL AGENT

# EXHIBIT A OFFICIAL BID FORM

To: Bryant School District No. 25 of Saline County, Arkansas

\$54,775,000 Bryant School District No. 25 of Saline County, Arkansas Refunding and Construction Bonds, Series B, dated May 1, 2018 Re:

This bid is made by the undersigned on its own behalf and as representative of the additional bidders, if any, named in the attached Schedule 1.

Reference is made to your Official Notice of Sale and Preliminary Official Statement (collectively the "Notice"), pertaining to the referenced Bonds, which are made parts hereof.

We hereby offer to pay you \$\_\_\_\_\_ (may not be less than \$53,734,275), for Bonds bearing the following rate of interest per annum and maturing or payable through sinking fund redemption on February 1 in each of the following years and aggregate principal amounts:

#### SERIAL BONDS AND MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTIONS

П			1
<b>D</b>	Required Principal Payment (Complete each line, indicating either a serial maturity or a mandatory sinking fund redemption, not a combination of both.)	Interest Rate (Complete only for years in	Reoffering
Due	sinking fund redemption, not a	which serial	Price
February 1		Bonds mature.)	or Yield
2019	\$1,680,000		
2020	1,245,000		
2021	1,265,000		
2022	1,290,000		
2023	1,315,000		
2024	1,345,000		
2025	1,380,000		
2026	1,415,000		
2027	1,450,000		
2028	1,490,000		
2029	1,535,000		
2030	1,585,000		
2031	1,640,000		
2032	1,695,000		
2033	1,750,000		
2034	1,815,000		
2035	1,880,000		
2036	1,950,000		
2037	2,020,000		
2038	2,100,000		
2039	2,175,000		
2040	2,260,000		
2040	2,350,000		
2042	2,440,000		
2043	2,535,000		
2043	2,635,000		
2045	2,735,000		
2045	2,845,000		
2040	2,955,000		
TOTAL	\$54,775,000		
IUIAL	\$34,773,000		

## TERM BONDS (Complete Only if Applicable)

\$	Term Bonds maturing on February	<sup>7</sup> 1,	_ at	% per annum to yield
\$	Term Bonds maturing on February	1,	_ at	% per annum to yield
\$	Term Bonds maturing on February	1,	_at	% per annum to yield
and is not Sale. This industry r this bid w 1(f)(3) for	nis bid is a firm offer for the purchase of t subject to any conditions, except as p is bid shall not be revocable. By submitted eputation for underwriting new issuance we confirm that we are an Underwriter purposes of establishing issue price for notified that we are the Successful 10 Deposit, or the Fed Reference Numb the Date.	permitted un ting this bid the of munic of as defined of the Bonds. Bidder, we	nder the control of t	the terms of the Official Notice of confirm that we have an established onds. Furthermore, by submitting easury Regulation Section 1.148-to provide the District with the
		Respectful	ly subr	mitted,
			nal bid	epresentative of ders, if any, le 1 hereto
		Ву	Author	rized Representative

#### COMPUTATION

We have computed, in the manner set forth in the Official Notice of Sale in the section entitled *Award of the Bonds*, the true interest cost of the Bonds to the District under the foregoing proposal. For your information only, and not as a part of the foregoing proposal, we advise you that such rate, so calculated, from the dated date to the final maturity date, is:

Par Amount of Bonds	\$
Less Discount/Plus Premium	
Net Purchase Price	
TIC% (to Four Decimals)	
ACCI	EPTANCE
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as of it	day of, 2018. We deem the Official ent final within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 under ts date, except for omissions of no more than the est rates and other terms or provisions required to be
We hereby agree to provide the continu Statement at the times and in the manner set for further evidenced by execution and delivery by described in the Official Statement, on or prior to	ing disclosure information as set forth in the Official rth in the Official Statement. This agreement will be the District of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate o the date the Bonds are issued.
ATTEST:	BRYANT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 25 OF SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS
BySecretary, Board of Directors	ByPresident, Board of Directors
beciemy, board of Directors	resident, board or bricetors

# SCHEDULE 1 of Official Bid Form

## LIST OF ADDITIONAL BIDDERS